

HIGH POINT CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING (Pre-Budget #3) HIGH POINT MUNICIPAL BUILDING FEBRUARY 4, 2016 – 3:00 P.M. 3RD FLOOR LOBBY CONFERENCE ROOM

MEETING MINUTES

Present:

Mayor William S. Bencini, Jr.; Mayor Pro Tem Golden (Ward 1) (joined the meeting at 3:10 p.m.); and Council Members Latimer Alexander (At-Large); Cynthia Davis (At-Large) (joined the meeting at 4:08 p.m.); Christopher Williams (Ward 2); Alyce Hill (Ward 3) (left the meeting at 5:06 p.m.); and Jay Wagner (Ward 4)

Absent:

Council Members Jason Ewing (Ward 6) and James Davis (Ward 5)

Staff Present:

Greg Demko, City Manager; Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager; Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager; Jeron Hollis, Communications & Public Engagement Director; Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager; Laura Altizer, Budget Analyst; Roslyn McNeill, Budget Analyst; JoAnne Carlyle, City Attorney; Robby Stone, Public Services Assistant Director; Glenda Barnes, Public Services Analyst; Terry Houk, Public Services Director; Ryan Ferguson, Marketing Manager; Worley Smith, Communications Specialist; Mark McDonald, Transportation Director; Maria Smith, Deputy City Clerk; and Lisa Vierling, City Clerk

Others Present:

Louis Thibodeaux, Kensington Drive resident

News Media:

Pat Kimbrough, High Point Enterprise

Transcript

Greg Demko, City Manager: Got a call from Council Member Cynthia Davis that she won't be able to attend today and again we are going through items to get some background on the budget and on the service so some of the decision things we'll be looking at as we finalize our strategic plan and work toward a budget for our future years and kick it off with Transportation and Mark.

Presentation by Mark McDonald - Transportation/Parking

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Thank you, I wanted to first start off with an overview of our department so that you will know what our composition is and what some of the things we do are and give you an update on a few projects and then talk about some of the capital budget requests for the coming years. First our mission is to provide a safe vision economically economical and environmentally sensitive transportation network for our citizens. Our priorities are to improve safety manage, congestion and enhance the quality of life and foster economic development. Our department is made up of these divisions right here:

- > Administrations
- ➢ Signs and markings
- ➤ Traffics signals
- Systems operations
- > Parking
- > Transportation planning (which is the MPO)
- > and Transit (which is Hi tran)

We have 78 employees in those divisions. Our operating budget on toll is about 8.6M dollars that includes Hi tran and we are anticipating about \$5 million in capital needs over the next five years. Administration engineering, we respond to public concerns when the phone rings and people are calling about various traffic concerns. That's our first priority is to respond to those concerns. We administer a number of different policies and programs like our driveway ordinance, our traffic calming program, things like that. We collect and evaluate traffic data for various projects, whether it comes from a public concern to a speed study of a certain street or whether we're looking at a specific project and we need to collect and evaluate data to build a case for that project. We oversee design and operation of transportation facilities such as Hi tran, and the Depot, the Transportation Terminal during the furniture market our signal system which you will hear a little more about later. We provide administrative and technical support for the other divisions within the department and we coordinate our activities with other departments throughout the City whether it be with Robby and Terry with Public Services or folks in Electric or all other departments and coordinate very close with them, as well with NCDOT. We have a very good relationship with the North Carolina Department of Transportation. We have the uniqueness in High Point of being situated where we sort of straddle county and division lines and we are part of three different divisions in NCDOT, so we're talking with people primarily in the Division 7 office in Greensboro, but also in Aberdeen in the Division 8 and in Winston-Salem in Division 9.

<u>Our Signs and Markings Division</u>, these are the guys that made the new Martin Luther King, Jr signs and University Parkway signs that were recently installed. They handle all of our pavement markings and they also handle our special events. And this is the group that is most involved with Furniture Market preparations, closing down streets during market, closing off parking during markets and managing that traffic flow during the market events. Also, for parades. The three major parades that we have. This is the group that handles that along with the Police Department. We do other special events too. Over the

February 4, 2016

years we've done several marathons, we've worked the bike races that have been held downtown and various other things as well, so these are the guys that handle that from a traffic standpoint.

<u>Traffic Signals.</u> A group of guys that work down at the Triangle Lake Road facility maintain our 216 traffic signals. Most of those are owned by the State of NC and we get reimbursed for that maintenance, but about 35 of them actually belong to the City of High Point. These guys construct new signals. This is a photograph right here of construction when we installed the signal over on what is now Martin Luther King Drive at Lindsay Street. That was done in conjunction with the Lindsay Street bridge replacement. Yes sir...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Mark, most communities and High Point is no exception, we've gone to mast arms in a lot of places and they really look much better than the wired kind of hanging approach. Do we have a policy about new traffic signals or should we have a policy about new signals being mast armed?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: We don't have a written policy. The unwritten approach to that is whenever we go underground with utilities we would go put in mast arms for the traffic signals and we've done that in several places. Most of our mast arms are confined to the downtown area, although we do have a number of installations now like over on University Parkway that are mast arms.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, I'm thinking specifically about the Idol and Westchester. That will be a brand new signal. We've never had a signal in there. You know if we had a policy in place to say that new signals driven by development must be mast arm. Would that be helpful or harmful?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Well, it would certainly be more costly if it's something that has been driven by development, it would be a cost that would be borne by the developer or the builder. Mast arm intersections are...just ball park....about twice as expensive as just using wood poles and spans. In other cases, we've used steel poles with spans. They look a little bit neater than the wood pole installations do, but they aren't as clean as the mast arms are.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, I'm just looking to you and to your staff for direction, but honestly, I would hope that at some point down the road we go more away from the old swaying signal and go to a mast arm and if we do have development that's being driven by that, if we had a policy in place then I think, you know, it could carry that.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's something that we could explore if you all have an interest in that.

Council Member Jay Wagner: When you say twice as much, how much is twice as much?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: We could do a wood pole installation for around \$100,000 maybe a little less. It depends on the size of the intersection. But mast arms are going to be more in the \$200,000 range. When we replaced the...rebuilt the signals over along University Parkway, Montlieu, Lexington and Centennial and those were \$175,000.

February 4, 2016

Council Member Jay Wagner: And, really you're burying the lines up to the intersection pretty much aren't you?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Right, you basically in areas where you're not already underground, you have a service drop that goes underground and feeds into the cabinet underground so the intersection itself as far as the signal goes is clean, but you still could have....

Council Member Jay Wagner: Yeah, it's underground...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: ...You're still going to have phone, cable and power on top of it.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: One more consideration those poles take 6-8 months to fabricate, so we'd have to....I'm not saying it's good or bad....you'd just have to put that into your planning.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Sure...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: It's a more lengthy design and review process for mast arms, and again that fabrication time is considerable—6-8 months is right.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, you know, if you do have new development in the area, while we have gotten use to looking at ugly poles and ugly wires....

Mayor Bencini: I'm still not use to it.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I understand that you never will be [laughter], but when you travel around the country...you are...other communities that are more progressive have a much cleaner look and if we've got development that is going in in a substantial way, a cleaner look is going to give you, I think, a more professional looking area. And I'd like to see us, where possible, begin to work that way.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Would you like us to maybe take that to Jay's committee then?

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, I ...

Mayor Bencini: It's a good idea...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I'd like to understand really what other committees are doing. I would....I could guarantee you Charlotte is going to make you do a mast arm—probably Raleigh, probably Durham. But I don't know what other communities our size are doing. You know \$250,000 is a lot money, assuming that would be a mast arm coming up there, but when you are looking at a project that is \$50 million, \$100,000 versus \$250,000 it's not going to be a deal breaker. And it may make the

February 4, 2016

project look more professional and look better, making it more appealing to national firms and drive a little higher rent.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: We can do a little research.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Yeah, I think it maybe would be worthwhile if you could just check and see what some other jurisdictions are doing. We can do a little inquiry. Just for informational purposes, we could take a look at it and see where it does.

Council Member Christopher Williams: Can we get examples of like what that looks? The differences between like the steel pole. I know what the wood and stuff looks like, but I'm talking about the difference between like the steel and the mast?

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Yeah, we can have pictures for everyone.

Council Member Christopher Williams: Just curious as to what it would look like.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: NCDOT uses mast arms at some locations. You see those at the interchange at 74, but they are not what we typically use. We use a black fluted decorative pole. They use just a plain galvanized steel pole. So there's a difference in look and there's a difference in cost. Either could be used.

Mayor Bencini: Yes, but I don't want to get us too far off track, but this probably isn't helping. Latimer mentioned Long and Westchester and all the anticipation of retail development there and I know one of the conditions is going to have to be a stop light, a signalized intersection. Would Long and Westchester not qualify for at least consideration of a roundabout?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Probably not, I imagine it....I think that volumes on Westchester are too high for a roundabout and it's also five lanes wide as opposed to being two lanes wide.

Mayor Bencini: Yeah, but it's also....It's not that far from Main Street and you're just adding another time to everybody. Everybody's going to have to stop and nobody has to stop at a roundabout. Nobody does.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's a consideration that we had when we were looking at that development where that was. It meets spacing requirements, but you're right. Traffic signals don't necessarily solve congestion, they make it.

Mayor Bencini: No, and if there's anything I've seen that's worked is our not exactly roundabout....I don't know if it's a peanut or a trapezoid or square about, but traffic moves through there. You never have to stop unless it's the Monday after a Panthers game...[laughter]

February 4, 2016

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's something we could explore, but with 68 being five lanes wide and carrying roughly 22-24,000 cars a day right there, that would probably be a stretch.

Mayor Bencini: Now, half of those 22 or 24,000 are going to have to stop. Once that retail gets developed, your cycle on those signals is going to switch to stop a lot on Westchester.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>Our System Operations Group</u>. They're the guys that operate the traffic signals. The other group that maintains them and constructs them and these guys that are downstairs in the camera room operate it.

Mayor Bencini: Do you have a picture of the guy that synchronizes them or tries to synchronize them?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I don't have a picture of him in here, but that's his boss right there.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: He knows what you're driving and goes, it's going to be red. It's going to be red. [laughter]

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: You'll hear a little bit more about this group. I've got another slide or two on this later on with our signal system project that's being kicked off right now. The State awarded the contract a couple of months ago and we're anticipating work to begin on that very soon and it will overhaul all of our traffic signals and will update all of our communications, all of our software. It will add about a dozen new additional traffic cameras and update that software too so that we can provide live feeds for all of our traffic cameras instead of just a still feed that refreshes about every minute.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Mark, I know that this system has helped some of our police officers determine accidents and that kind of thing. Will there ever be any linkage between our traffic officers and our system down there where they could because I'm sure they roll up on an accident and two people said, oh yeah, my light was green.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Right now, what they do when there's an accident, they will contact the guys downstairs and say is this the location where you've got a camera, yes or no. And if we do, they'll say well where was the camera pointing at such and such a time. Sometimes we get it. Sometimes we don't. It really depends on where have the camera set. And we have certain places where we put the camera and leave it at certain times of the day. We may be looking northbound in the morning and southbound in the evening or whatever. If we get that image, and we had it recorded, and we are constantly recording, but it's overwriting every seven days or so. We do not archive it. So if they ask within that period and we find something, then we can share that with them. In the future, with the next generation that's going be installed over the next two to three years, they would be able to get a live feed over the internet of all the cameras.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: That would be very helpful to the officer to determine what happened.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: It still doesn't mean, though, that the camera will be looking at the place they want it to look at, but at least it will be a more efficient system.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>Parking</u>, our three parking decks. The Plaza. This is Broad Street right here. About 1,200 spaces in those three parking decks. We mentioned the other day that our Main Street deck—the hotel deck—we have leased that to the hotel. They are now operating that deck. So we're operating the Plaza and Broad Street. Broad Street, we don't have enough demand to keep it open year around. It's closed except during markets and special events. If we have a need for it can be opened up in a day or two with notice and get people in there for that use.

Mayor Bencini: Excuse me Mark, what's that red awning in the bottom left hand corner? What is that?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: This right here is Jarrett's Stationery.

Mayor Bencini: They moved didn't they? [laughter]

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's probably a very old photo. You can recycle photos.

Mayor Bencini: I like that, it looks good.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Mark, I have a question on that. I know that a lot of cities have gone to automation for their parking decks now. They don't have people working them anymore. Is that something we've looked at, or do you think given the amount of use they get.....

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Well, that's something that we all of us need to talk about and consider. We've got some funding right now that can be used for a needs assessment. We'll talk about that in a little bit later. But that's one of the things that we really need to look at. Our equipment is...

Greg Demko, City Manager: Old...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: 25-30 years old and it's all DOS based software. The company that makes the equipment is no longer in business. We're having to scavenge to get that kind of stuff.

Council Member Jay Wagner: I know that when I go to larger cities now, if I park in the deck you know you take your ticket with you and you insert it and you go ahead and pay and go back to your car and just drive out. There's no person.....

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I don't think you can ever eliminate the need to have some staff, but we've already....our staff is fairly small now. We're down to two full-time people and four part-time people that work at the decks and the depot. The courtesy parking that we put on the

February 4, 2016

streets many, many years ago has really eroded the use of our decks. And the recession didn't help a bit. The first thing that a lot company's cut out was parking. A lot of company's were buying parking for the entire year just for the privilege of just having it for two weeks a year. And a lot of it... ten years ago we had a long waiting list for parking and now we don't.

Council Member Jay Wagner: I remember...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: So that's something that we need to look at is how we are going to address both on-street parking and our off- street parking.

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: And I'll say that is a huge, huge incentive for downtown development that we have not tapped into to have 700 spaces available that you don't have to pay as a City to put infrastructure in for development. It's huge. So the use of those, hopefully, will change some overtime and...

Mayor Bencini: And we'll have the full 1,200 if and when our term expires with the Radisson, correct?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Right. We've got about 700 spaces here and about 250 in both the Broad Street deck and the Main Street deck and 30 spaces down here in the Pit.

Mayor Bencini: Well, what's the....we've paid off the parking bonds, have we not? So we have these things free and clear. Okay.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: The Plaza facility has some very specific structural **needs** and that's something else.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: The Main Street deck, when it was built, I don't know if anybody knows this or not, but it was built to have a fitness club on the top of it. We've never exploited that real estate. There has to be opportunity on top of that deck.

Mayor Bencini: Does Randy know about that yet?

Council Member Alexander: I wanted to make sure he knew about it.

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: My first week on the job, I walked over there and went up to that top floor. I couldn't get all the way up, but got up on the top floor and I thought that same thing.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, the foundation was built to accommodate a health club up there and that never occurred. So you may want to take a look at the plans, as-built plans on that because that is prime real estate that we own.

Greg Demko, City Manager: That's a roof top something.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: That we're doing nothing with.

Mayor Bencini: And as recently as a few years ago, we had a proposal by a couple of folks in town that wanted to build on top of there.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, if nothing else, and I haven't been up to the top. I've been in the First Citizens or the First Factors building and I looked down on it. But, if you want to rock a party out during Furniture Market, I mean you've got controlled access, you may have other amenities up there. I mean it would be a great place to have some parties and even at off market times.

Mayor Bencini/Greg Demko, City Manager: Council meeting.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: But that's real estate that we own that's just, I mean, God looks at it every day and that's it.

Council Member Jay Wagner: I've actually seen some preliminary drawings in conjunction with redevelopment of the First Factors building for, you know, where at least there were concepts done for extending that building out over that deck. And it's an opportunity. It really is.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Shortly, after I came to work here, it must have been in 2003 or 2004, there was actually some interest by someone that was in the GE Capital building at that time.

Mayor Bencini: They wanted to extend...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Not really extending the building, but having access from the building onto the deck and putting like a little plaza out there where employees could go out. It didn't go anywhere and that's probably the last time anybody asked anything about it.

Mayor Bencini: I think, I think the conversation went silent when we asked how we were going to figure out were we leasing air space to them, or was this going to be ground rent. And their response was, we didn't factor any of that in.

Member Latimer Alexander: We didn't want to rent it, we just wanted to use it... [laughter]

Mayor Bencini: So that was the end of that conversation.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Parking is something that really needs some attention and we need to decide what we want to do with it because we do have a lot of.... maintenance issues are just increasing and we need to decide how we're going to progress that. In case you don't know, our parking staff also looks after the Depot. So when things are going on over there, we are monitoring that as well and taking care of the maintenance at the Depot as well.

Mayor Bencini: Speaking of parking at the Depot, those spaces that we built in there recently expanded the parking. What's the policy, no not what's the policy, what happens there if somebody parks there and leaves their care there for a couple of hours?

February 4, 2016

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Technically, they should be towed. The funding for that, that paid to do that came through the State from the Feds and it was intended to be solely for Depot and Amtrak passenger use. We've tried to be....It's signed that way, but we've tried to be as lenient as we can be on that.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Don't you get a card? If you're on the train that you're supposed to put in your....

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: You do. They're supposed to give you something, if you want to park there. We have a fair amount of people that if they are going on a long trip, they'll actually park in the parking deck and leave their car in the parking deck. That parking extends all the way down behind Natuzzi and they have issues with getting trucks in and out of their loading dock. They had problems with that even before. But now they utilize that some and whenever they have a truck coming in, we'll allow them to cone spaces off so people won't park all the way down there, so they can get there trucks in and out. The position

Mayor Bencini: Sounds like a little bit like the other end of High Street behind Showplace...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: The position from NCDOT and FRA, the Federal Rail Administration, has been that parking is reserved for Amtrak. I park there when I drive over there to go to the Depot.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Just a couple of shots of the depot which is really the highlight of the City and our train, the Amtrak 1859 train.

A little bit about Transportation Planning and the MPO. High Point's the lead agency for the MPO. Mayor Bencini sits on the TAC for the MPO. We are one of 19 MPOs statewide and these are federally mandated organizations based on population. Our urban area, which was at one time was primarily just High Point and I'll show a map in a minute. High Point and some surrounding communities like Archdale and Trinity have in the last few years expanded to include almost all of Davidson County. So we've grown from about 280 square miles to over 600 square miles in area, 680 square miles. Eight cities, four counties—parts of four counties—and are responsible for all the long range transportation planning that is required within that urbanized area and for the use of federal funds. This is the map and you can see that High Point is right there in the corner of Guilford County, but we include..... up until about three years ago, our area was, this surrounding portion right here, well, Lexington and Denton both elected to join the High Point MPO as opposed to the Winston-Salem MPO or the Salisbury or Rowan MPO. And with that came the rest of that part of Davidson County. So we have a very large geographic area and what is for all intents and purposes a rural area, but based on the census it is considered urban, so it's within our MPO.

Our budget for the MPO is roughly \$580,000 a year. High Point's share of that is about \$37,000 a year. That doesn't count special studies and things like that where we would pay a larger share if we're doing something that's specific to High Point. That's our contribution. Most of the money is federal money that is used for the planning process. Again, this is all a federally mandated process.

February 4, 2016

Mayor Bencini: Mark, before you go beyond that, we've got coming up with the MPO, our prioritization....**Project Prioritization**. And in the last few years, I don't ever remember being on the Council where the Council met and talked about these priorities prior to somebody walking up and putting their votes on which projects would mean the most to City of High Point. **And I really would like to see Council be part of the process** and when I go in there I'm going in there to do kind of what Council has agreed upon that we want to do as opposed to doing it and then somebody says, "Well, how did that happen." Because that's, I really do think it's important that the entire Council is part of the process in saying and understanding because it's going to come from you and Greg and Randy and Randy as to what you folks think we need to do based on all of our plans here in the City.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: We can put together a briefing for Council.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Put it together and get with you and, of course, one of the things that we're looking to add is one part of the gateway programs and get further discussions on the pieces of that. That's become pretty active and with our legislators that are there, we've got good opportunity.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: We can definitely put together a program for you and have Greg Venable sort of go through the list of projects and give you an overview of the prioritization process that the State uses.

Mayor Bencini: And I'd like to hear what staff thinks we want to do and then, you know, we get a chance to talk about it and figure out why and then we go forward with it.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Sure...

Greg Demko, City Manager: Can we have that for the next Manager's Briefing?

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Not the next one.

Mayor Bencini: Well, we're running out of time on the prioritization...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: I will look at the schedule and see if we can work it in.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Voting will be probably in April or May. We've got a little bit of time to work on that. But there is, I can send you a link of an interactive map that we have made that shows all of the current and proposed projects that we have as of right now. You can kind of see some of the details about these. Again these are for most part all long range projects. And you can see where they are and what they are and what the estimated cost would be and things of that nature. So we could get that information to you in advance and then we would have our staff talk about it.

Mayor Bencini: That'll be great, thank you.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>Hi tran</u>, you just heard some information from Angela at Hi tran earlier this week. A little bit about that, we serve about 3,500 passengers a day on our fixed route bus. It provides a local connection to PART. PART's a big partner for us. We need PART to help us to connect to other communities. Our Dial-A-Lift program, that's our Para transit program that provides door-to-door service for the elderly and disabled. And it's very successful and you can't get a ride from anywhere and to anywhere. It's \$2 per trip.

Mayor Bencini: I'm getting close to that elderly thing what year is that?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: You might be there. [laughter]

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: That is also mandated by the Federal Government. If you have a bus service, you have to have the Para transit.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: It is. If you operate a fixed route system, you have to have a Para transit service.

Mayor Bencini: Oh, man..., bus ride in my future.

Member Latimer Alexander: It's called designated driver, Bill. [laughter]

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: The <u>terminal facility</u> that was rebuilt about three years ago, four years ago now you may remember the old terminal facility that was just a small fraction of this size. We built this to have a larger waiting room for our passengers or comfortable waiting room, better bathroom facilities, we literally raised the roof on the canopy here it was about 11 feet when it was built several decades ago, and we had problems on the weekends with trucks coming into town and needing to turn around somewhere and they'd think well, there's nothing going on there and I'll turn around there and they'd run into the canopy. We had to spend thousands of dollars fixing the canopy. So, when we did all this, we raised that two feet and we haven't had that problem since.

Mayor Bencini: Has there been any further discussion about using the bus terminal for Greyhound, Trail ways or whatever other commercial bus systems?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Not this facility. Not recently. Actually there hasn't been any discussion that I've heard in the last maybe two or three years.

Mayor Bencini: Right...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: There's been an occasional request to come through to use the Depot for that and the Depot there on High Street really just isn't built to accommodate that, but it's been several years since the last time we've had any discussion with anybody about that.

Just a few more facts and figures. We operate six days a week. We run about 1,700 miles a day. Our coverage from our transit routes....our transit routes essentially haven't changed very much over the last 25 or 30 years. Our route coverage is primarily south of the I-74 corridor, but within a ¹/₄ mile walking distance, that's covering roughly a third the city area. If you look at a map, that's this area right here and it's the area that's in purple—that quarter of a mile contour that goes around all of our routes. If you extend that out to a half mile, you get even... almost half of the city, but there's no service up to the north. And that's one of the big things that you've heard a lot about is providing service to the Palladium and creating some circulators and connectors with PART to provide that service so that we can get people that live and work here out here and vice versa and we're working with PART to do that.

Speaking of PART, it was created about almost 20 years now to serve the ten member Counties here in the TRIAD area. Their goal is to improve transportation through regional cooperation. They work very closely with the member jurisdictions. We have a very good relationship with PART I think. They provide much more than just what you see out on the street. They provide much more than just the black bus that runs up and down 68 every day or back and forth to Greensboro and Winston.

Mayor Bencini: Do we have direct non-stop service from High Point to either Greensboro or Winston Salem?

High Point City Council Special Meeting (Pre-Budget #3)

Minutes

February 4, 2016

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Do we?

Mayor Bencini: Yeah, can somebody in High Point jump on a PART bus and go direct non-stop to Greensboro or Winston-Salem?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: If you wanted to go to Winston, you could take the Amtrak connector that runs between Winston and Greensboro, but we do not have anything that goes directly to Greensboro. We connect with GTA at GTCC in Jamestown and we connect with both systems at the Hub up on 68, but we don't have anything that provides a one-stop service.

Greg Demko, City Manager: But you can go to the Hub and get to either one?

Mayor Bencini: Which means an additional wait time of 15-20 minutes standing around.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And the same with the airport.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Same with the airport.

Mayor Bencini: But there is direct non-stop service between Greensboro and Winston-Salem.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Between us and Winston there is.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Between us and Winston there is on the Amtrak connector, but between Winston and Greensboro with the PART bus that comes from Winston stops at the Hub too and you have to get off at the Hub and go into Greensboro on the bus that goes there. So there's a transfer point there.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Nothing to Chapel Hill.

Mayor Bencini: Well, there use to be. There was a Chapel Hill. There was a...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: That goes to the hospitals.

Mayor Bencini: But not directly from High Point?

Greg Demko, City Manager: Not to the stadium.

Mayor Bencini: We don't care about that.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Do they still run a buss all the way up to Boone?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's a contract service. It's not through PART.

Mayor Bencini: But they do run all the way up to Mount Airy I think.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: They do, that's one of their more popular routes. That route, the Greensboro and Winston routes and our route, Route 3....those routes comprise probably 80 percent of PART routes.

Mayor Bencini: They still go to Mocksville and Yadkinville, well yeah, they would to Yadkinville if they are on a contract route, but Mocksville had a stop to I believe.

February 4, 2016

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: They have discontinued or cut back on some of those services. I'm not sure which ones exactly, but they have had discontinued some of that. But that route up to Mount Airy has been a very strong route.

Some of the programs, of course the express bus and the Amtrak connector service. PART operates the Para transit Call Center that we're a part of. Greensboro and Winston are not participating in that right now. I think that Davidson County has recently signed on, but it has helped us immensely in scheduling paratransit trips by using a centralized call center. It provides better customer service for everybody. They do a lot of regional transportation studies. They maintain the regional model that is the transportation crystal ball for long range development planning. They do a lot of air awareness things, a lot of what PART does has a central theme of air quality so they have a lot of things that go along with that a lot of different programs. They support different groups like Piedmont Transportation Professionals that I participate in. They provide training and seminars and things like that on topics of interest to the transportation professionals throughout the region. They do a very good job of that.

Our share of funding for PART is about \$88,000 a year. That has gone up since we joined in with the Call Center. I was less than that, but it's about \$88,000. That, of course, does not count the 5307 Federal Operating Funds that we are transferring to PART to support the Express route and to develop the Palladium and Piedmont Center circulator routes.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Do they still receive funding through the rental car market?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Yes, the rental car tax is a huge part of their funding.

Mayor Bencini: Aren't the members of the authority....some members use rental car tax, other members use license tax.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Some use it and some don't...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Randolph County uses a license tax.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: They're the only county that actually does that.

Mayor Bencini: And who generates more rental car revenue than High Point with the Furniture Market? Probably nobody. Just keep it in mind.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: During Market, you can't find a car.

Just an update on a few projects of interest. Skeet Club Road, the section from Eastchester to Johnson Street, under construction now. Most of the work that's going on right....they've cleared....most of the construction is happening right there at the lake with the bridge work...

Mayor Bencini: There's nothing down on Johnson going on right now? [laughter]

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Nothing happening at Johnson. This project cost is about \$32 million and it is a State funded project. We will be participating in sidewalks, and water/sewer that they're building with the project and then we will reimburse the State afterwards and we are putting together the funding for that right now.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: 2002 I got elected'; Bill got elected in 2000. This was a project...

Mayor Bencini: Actually mine was 1999...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: 1999, but this was supposed to be done within the decade. Are we still on that same timeline that this was supposed to be done within the next decade?

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Next decade?

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Yes, ten years from now.

Mayor Bencini: Well, the western section, the projection is now 2024 for the red portion.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's the scaled down section.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: So when is B supposed to be done?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: In '18.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Oh my God. I need to get money down on that. It'll never be done by '18.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I think the scheduled completion date was around September '18.

Mayor Bencini: Well, the utility relocation may take another year or two. Who knows?

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Like I said, I need to get money down on that if anybody's making a book.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>Safe Routes to Schools.</u> We've have \$500,000 in Federal funds to do some sidewalk projects around five different schools. Oak Hill Elementary school. I've got....the next slide shows the other four schools. Supplemented with up to \$100,000 in city funds. We've already acquired all the right-of-way easements that are necessary. We've gone through review after review after review with NCDOT and Federal reps. I mean for a sidewalk project, it's just been extremely exhaustive, but we're getting close and would expect that they'd be constructing the sidewalk portions this year. These are the other schools Johnson Street Global Studies, Shadybrook Elementary, Fairview, and Triangle Lake Montessori. These are all schools that elected to participate in the Safe Routes program and they all meet the criteria that the Feds and the State set for the use of the funding.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Sometime I'd like to have management show us a map of all our existing sidewalks with special emphasis on missing links.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: We have that...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I deleted it out of this program...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: But, at some point, I mean...and I think it's something that's worth at least an hour or more....

High Point City Council Special Meeting (Pre-Budget #3)

Minutes

February 4, 2016

Greg Demko, City Manager: Okay, well I agree because that's a real important piece of transportation and we gave Mark about an hour for this one and we're running tight, so, well keep going, but we'll bring back the sidewalks because I agree and it probably deserves at least 45 minutes.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: And when you come back with the sidewalks, I'd like to know how much money you have in lieu than is in reserve and what the covenants are for those in lieu funds.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I can tell you that there is very little money in lieu of. The developer funds that were put aside, we used a lot of that in the last go round, but I'll get but I've got another slide about sidewalks.

Johnson/Sandy Ridge Road, we're chugging through the environmental process for that. That's a very long process Federal/State process that we have to go through, but it is moving very smoothly and we anticipate construction to being '19 if it doesn't go the route of Skeet Club Road. The price tag is around \$45 million. This is just a view of some of the concepts that were considered with....this is looking south from Interstate 40 right here down Johnson Street. Looked at some alternate corridors. Both of these alternate corridors have been discounted and the plan is to stay pretty much along the same alignment that the road is on now. There'll be some deviation from that in two places...

Mayor Bencini: The alternates would allow for control access though huh?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: It would have.

Member Latimer Alexander: Yea, but Guilford County permitted a number of buildings in the way.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Yes, there's at least one right there. There's churches...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Yeah and there's some churches, cemeteries....

Mayor Bencini: Yeah, but I mean anytime...you're going to get some of that anytime you do a controlled access, but I mean, quite frankly it looks to me like if you do the Sandy Ridge thing basically what you're doing is another Eastchester and 68. And it's going to fill up. It's going to fill up with stop lights and development and it's not really going to be an alternate access other than being more of the same that you've got on 68.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Well, we hope it will be a little different from 68. It will be median divided. There will be wide-landscaped medians as opposed to just a five lane landing strip, sidewalks on both sides, a multi-purpose trail. Hopefully it will be a more of a complete street than what Eastchester is.

Mayor Bencini: But you can't eliminate the side streets for the existing driveway cuts.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: It won't be controlled access.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: There'll be some limitations to that, but it won't....it'll be more limited access as opposed to controlled access.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>The 68 and I-74 interchange,</u> this also moving forward with construction in '18 with about \$17.5 million to construct these two loops in two quadrants so we can eliminate the left turns on the bridge that clog things up every day and certainly...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What are we doing with land use around there. We need a small area study there.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Right now, to my knowledge, there's no changes to the existing land use there. I don't know whether Lee has considered it or not, but.....

Mayor Bencini: Don't mess with outdoor yard art, okay? Just don't mess with it, okay?

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We've got to have some land use in that. We've got to have some land use out there.

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: He's talked about it to me.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: There'll be some realignment, so that facility will definitely be impacted.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Gordon Road that comes in right here will be relocated to where it lines up with Hilton Court and Cypress Court will also be extended across to there to increase that spacing. So there will be some changes primarily on the north side, maybe some limited changes on the south side. There will be a median to restrict some of those turning movements, to control that traffic better at that the interchange.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, that's our hotel interchange right there and if we're not talking about it, we're not doing our job.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>New Funding requests for this year</u>. We've got a few things that we're asking for new funding for this year. One is the Mendenhall Terminal. We need to make some improvements over in the terminal. We need to enhance the lighting that's there. We spend a fair amount of money every year just on lighting over there. Using the old lighting is very inefficient and we would like to improve the lighting. We also like the message boards that are at each column that are used to display routes and things like that. Those message boards are no longer made. The company that made them does not support them anymore. We're just kind of working on Band-Aids with that, we're able to keep them running, but at some point they're going to fail us. We need to upgrade those message boards. We'd like to make some other improvements within the terminal that would make it more useful as an event place. It was not built to be an event place....it was thought about, but it wasn't built that way. The funding that was used to build it would not expressly permit that, but we've seen that it is used as an event center and we're looking at making some changes that would make it a more functional plaza.

Mayor Bencini: Would that include eliminating the curbs?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I could, yes. That's definitely one thing that we've talked about is doing something that would at least flatten things out a little bit better so we don't have the curbs in there and also putting in some gates so that we can control the access to the Terminal.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And the center support relocations...

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: We were looking at, I'll show you a picture here.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We've also got to have some.... if you're going to use that as an event center, we've got to figure out the bathroom.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's a good thought, we haven't projected that yet.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: You've got to have a bathroom.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: There are center columns right here in that center walkway area between IHFC and the Showplace that we would like to remove. Dave Briggs over at the Theatre has specifically asked that we remove those so that center area can be used more for as an entertainment area. So we're looking at doing that. The good thing about that is that if we take those down, it gives us some spare parts to work with temporarily. So Keith Pugh and I have talked about that. There are some things that have to be worked through that are sub-surfaced, but we're looking at doing that. Again, we're replacing the lighting and these are the electronic sign pieces that need to be upgraded. We'll probably be looking at expanding the size of the information kiosk. It's about half the size it needs to be and expanding the size of the large message board and display board that's up on the wall above that.

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: Mark, when we looked at that, can we look at kind of the whole idea of the visibility of the Theatre? When you go back to that and look at it, there's really....I know that we've got our little marquis thing out there, but **visibility of the Theatre really needs to be part of that conversation.**

Council Member Latimer Alexander: And if you're going to spend some money, you've got an **electronic vault over there that needs to drop down below grade**.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Again, there were a lot of things....when it was built, it was built to be a transportation facility and that was exactly what the funding was set aside for. I talked to Keith just last night and we both agreed that if we were to do this facility again, we both would do it very differently than what we have right now. It's very functional. It's very pretty. It works, but it could be more.

Greg Demko, City Manager: I could tell you that our transportation facility and logistics of handling people moving them in and out are light years above the Las Vegas experience and gives us a competitive advantage that we want to keep and improve.

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: Absolutely...

Council Member Christopher Williams: Now, Randy when you're talking about the visibility, you're not talking about the light show that he showed us?

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: No, I'm just talking about the signage that we had up on the building that was really visible before, but is now too high. It's right at the level of where this canopy shows, so details like that. Just how do we make it more visible?

Greg Demko, City Manager: Way finding and

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>Signing on I-74 and Business-85 for Martin Luther King</u>, <u>Jr. Drive</u>. The State produced these new signs and installed them for us. They gave us an estimate ahead of time that was for about \$125,000. We got the bill, and it was only \$70,000. But we do need to pay for it. You all will be seeing a municipal agreement very soon I hope to cover the repayment of that. So we're asking for funding to pay that back over a couple of years.

High Point City Council Special Meeting (Pre-Budget #3)

Minutes

February 4, 2016

Down at our <u>R. V. Moss Traffic Services Center</u> on Triangle Lake Road. This is Triangle Lake and Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive here. This building right here. We need some **additional storage space**. We're going to start doing mast arm signals and need a space to put them. The city recently acquired a couple of parcels right over in this area, so these parcels are available. What we'd like to do is **add another building** right in this area right here. It'd be roughly, half again, of this storage area right here. This would be to keep all of our electronic message boards in, all of our equipment like our back hoes and things like that to get them inside and out of the weather. So that's what we'd like to see happen right there.

We're asking for funding this year to start doing the site work and site design and next year additional funding to build the building itself. It'll just be just basically a shell building that would have lights and power in to store those facilities.

<u>Neighborhood Traffic Enhancements</u>. We've all talked a lot about the traffic calming and this would require a policy change but we need some source of funding on an annual basis that would help us to supplement neighborhoods or help supplement neighborhoods that would want to do traffic calming. Right now, our policy requires neighborhoods to meet certain criteria and bare all costs of installation. Right now, we're looking for about \$50,000 a year to make amendments to the policy and see where it goes.

Additional Capital Funding Requests. These are projects that have been in before. The local match for DOT funded projects, that's just what that says. For projects when we have something and the State can come up with some money, we've got to come up with a match. The intersection project that is pending for Main Street and Lexington Avenue is a good example of that where we're having to supplement the money that they're giving us with some additional city funds to make that happen. South Main Street and the 29/70 interchange is probably one of the craziest interchanges in North Carolina with the growth that's inside of it. It's in the TIP. It's projected for some work in about 2025-2026 somewhere around there, but we need to do a feasibility study to kind of accelerate that and determine what really needs to be done.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: That only bridge replacement right?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: The bridge replacement is sooner than that, but there's actually a...the TIP has been amended to include the interchange as well. But it hasn't really been determined what will be done. So, we've got to determine how were going to address these businesses that are on the inside, how we are going to address the fact that we've got a stream over here that we can't cross. A lot of questions that need to be answered.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What kind eminent domain can we use for some of that? If we're going to make some improvements on South Main, that's the ugliest part of South Main down there. And it may require just a bulldozer and a dump truck for part of it.

Council Member Jay Wagner: I've never seen a clover leaf with a hotel in it. That's not the kind of development that you see.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: The way it's designed right now, there's no control of turning movements. If you want to go this way...

Council Member Jay Wagner: I do that all the time...

February 4, 2016

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: And here's a couple of photos there. On-going projects that we are not looking for any additional funding this year. I'll go through these fairly quickly. <u>Sidewalk construction</u>. You asked about sidewalks. We've got about \$900,000 programmed right now. The previous Council told us what projects they wanted us to do. They are on our backlog right now behind those Safe Routes to School projects, but as we can get to those we will. Engineering services will be doing the design on those and we'll be...

Greg Demko, City Manager: Is that something that we should.... you know, where's our backlog, should we be contracting out engineering services?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: It would make things go quicker if we could do that.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And just accelerate. That's one of things that we'll be asking Council is there's a lot of things and we expect a lot of different types of performance out of our engineering program and we've got.....and we've got a lot of private engineers that could also be doing design services for us. It ends up costing a little bit more, but we get things more timely because we don't have to stack up projects.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, I mean, if we've got \$900,000 sitting there already allocated, we need to move that along.

Greg Demko, City Manager: I plan to instruct our staff to farm that out get it going and get some concrete in the ground.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: These are from the last sidewalk projects just to see what we've done. This on Phillips and Westchester. Those were some of that in lieu of funding that went with the last sidewalk package that was done. <u>Parking</u>. We talked about parking a little bit. We talked about courtesy parking and the effects that it has had. We talked a little.... some about the gates, card readers, all that....everything is still on technology that's several decades old now. We're looking at structural repairs and improvements that would probably be somewhere in the \$700,000 range, but we're looking into an assessment of those needs and the structural needs and do it all in one package. It's just an overview of some of the equipment that we've got. These cameras, very old technology, black and white. We're going to.... the traffic signal system cameras that we're going to be taking down with that will be going over here to replace those. They won't be brand new, but it will be better than what we've got.

Mayor Bencini: Okay.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Some structural problems that we've got. We've got spalling concrete, exposed cables that just weathered and we've got to watch those. We have a large support column down in the basement of the Plaza that's got this crack alongside of it. We've been keeping an eye on that. It hasn't gotten any worse and we aren't really sure when that happened. We think it may have been when we may have had that little earthquake a few years ago.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: <u>Signal System Improvements</u>, we talked a little bit about that, but we're still about \$450,000 short of our funding commitment on that. That will due after the project is complete and DOT will bill us for that. And lastly, just to put the thought in your head about potential bond projects, this is the list that we've got of some routes that we feel like that need some attention:

Triangle Lake Roads (been talked about for a long time)

- Burton Road (very similar to Triangle Lake, not as long, but very similar as need)
- Gordon Street (is a street right in the middle of town, it goes from curb and gutter to ribbon pavement to ditches to no sidewalks and some sidewalks. It really needs some attention there)

Council Member Jay Wagner: That's Gordon Street that's kind of the extension of Washington?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That's correct.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Okay, I get that with Gordon Road.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: Washington Terrace up to Five Points.

Council Member Cynthia Davis: Mark, the improvements on Burrton Road, is that due to the potential project for the park out there off of Westchester or is that just regular maintenance?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: That would be a.....certainly an amenity for the park but it's really due to the alignment, poor drainage and the fact that there's no sidewalks and a lot of people try to walk up to the shopping center. You've got a bus route that runs up there. It's just a lot... it's an old rural route that needs to be improved.

 Johnson Street (to move the Johnson Street project along, it may behoove us to participate in actually constructing a portion of that like we have done in the past)

Mayor Bencini: What are you talking about? Are you talking about the Sandy Ridge end of Johnson Street or in town?

McDonald, Transportation Director: From Skeet Club up to the Sandy Ridge split.

Mayor Bencini: Got you.

• Lexington Avenue (has been mentioned, various intersection improvements. The one downtown one-way street conversions would be something to consider)

This is just a list for your consideration.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Mark, Prospect Street, I know they're replacing the bridge over Business-85. Is Prospect a State Road? I can't ever remember if it's a State Road or a City Road.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: It is a State Road after it crosses into Randolph County. The portion there by....where it crosses over the railroad tracks and where we did the little intersection improvement at Trinity Road, all that from that point on is a City Street back up to English Road.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: You know, honestly, **Prospect** is probably one of our nastiest little streets. It's **narrow and I don't know that we have adequate right-of-way in there**. It's been repaved five hundred times so we've lost the curb line in there. You know, you can tell where folks are walking down the streets because it's completely worn path and we have a lot of heavy truck traffic in there because of Thomas Bus and Carolina Container and the Foam plant and everybody else that feeds into there. It's going to be a nasty road to deal with, but at some point in time the road is going to cease to function because it's just going to fall apart. Um, I mean I don't know what we'll do in there. I really don't. And I don't know that repaying the street is worthy of a potential bond project, but at some point

in time, we really need to look at Prospect because some of our largest employers have access to that street and it's really degrading.... seriously.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: I agree with you. We have a number of streets that are like that. This is just a partial list of what could be done. It's just a matter of having the resources to be able to do it.

Mayor Bencini: Does Lexington Avenue does that contemplate West Lexington or just East Lexington?

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: This is primarily focusing on the part from the Five Points area up to Main Street. There is another piece of Lexington that's also being, that's on the project list for the MPO that goes from basically Westchester, west of Westchester out towards High Point-Wallburg Road. That's all I've got. I hope it's been helpful for you.

Greg Demko, City Manager: It's pretty thorough. Any other thoughts for Mark? We've got water and sewer that's pretty extensive with some issues as well.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What does it take to get traffic counts? I mean, honestly I'd love to see a traffic count for every mile from South Main to North Main and I don't know what's involved in that. I don't know if it's big deal or little deal. If we're looking at our Main Street corridor and opportunities along that area we kind of need to know what our traffic count is and because it varies so much through the year, it almost needs to be done simultaneously through there so you know on this day or this week we've got these kind of counts.

Council Member Jay Wagner: They have a recent traffic study of North Main that was done about a year or two ago.

Mayor Bencini: Lexington and Main is like what, 15,000?

Council Member Jay Wagner: I think it was a little higher than that, I think it was 18.

Mark McDonald, Transportation Director: North Main Street and Lexington is around 22-24,000. You get south of Parkway, it drops off to about to 18. You get south of Westwood, it's about 16 and then picks back up again down below Russell. And about the time you get down to the South Main Street interchange, it gets back up to low to mid 20s. State counts...the most recent State counts were probably from 2013, I don't think..... '14 counts may be posted now, but we haven't done our own counts along there with the exception of that piece there along North Main, we could do that.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, you know and it may be better to wait until after, I mean we've got some new development that's going to be occurring in there, and it may be better to count it after that occurs. We really need to know what that corridors doing.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Alright Terry.

Presentation by Terry Houk - Water/Sewer

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: My name is Terry Houk, Public Services Director. My staff here has asked not to be named, but they are there in the corner. I want to talk about the water/sewer budget and operational presentation and remember Council, Public Services is actually made up of what we consider two sub departments: water/sewer and public works. And we're going to talk about what we consider water and sewer today. I'm going to do an overview and all about the current operating funding

February 4, 2016

by division. Our projects for the next five years that we plan, funding sources rates and fees. Areas of concerns, that Public Services sees that need to be addressed and that Council needs to be aware of. Future large scale projects. Typically, we look at the five-year plan and we go out each year and now we're looking out to about 2020-2025, so you can look at what the potential large-scale projects are going to be. And after that I'll let Eric sum it up with his great presentation.

Alright, the water/sewer is an Enterprise Fund made up of eight divisions, which seven are truly operation divisions. Our total operating budget is roughly \$19 million and we have 138 employees. If you note, up here, our operational admin is about \$2.6 million. If you look at just from the face plate, you'd think that was a lot of money, but in that there's about \$1.2-1.3 million to pay the Piedmont Triad Regional Water Authority dues and water. So that's why the budget is so high. We also have to reimburse Davidson Water when we interface with them on properties. Also, embedded in that is other contractual services for water modeling or project maintenance.

<u>Regional Water Authority</u>, as everybody knows, we are part of the Regional Water Authority. I think there are five entities involved. We are committed to take an annual average of 2.28 mgd, million gallons per day. The plant itself is permitted for 12 million gallons per day. Our annual payments, this is for this past fiscal year, is \$845,000 and our dues are \$310,000. The \$845,000 is really what we had to pay for the water. The \$310,000 is what we consider overhead to them and our debt service to the project. We are 19 percent of the Authority; we have two board members on there.

The <u>Ward Water Treatment Plant</u>. This is our Water Treatment Plant. It has an annual average of roughly 12.3 million gallons. We are permitted for 24 and designed for 32. The safe yield for our lakes and we have two primary lakes: Arnold Koonce Lake and Oak Hollow Lake. They are roughly 22 million gallons per day. It was built in the 1980s. Your life cycle for your equipment and most plants are basically are about 20-25 years, but **sometime in the mid-20s you're probably looking at a rehab of this facility.** When I say rehab of the facility, when I'm expanding the plant and not making it to treat more water, you're talking about replacing the equipment that needs to be redone and rehab of this what they call a super pulsator. Our estimate based on right now is \$4-5 per gallon is about \$48 million that you'll be looking at somewhere in 2022.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Terry, of our current average....we're permitted for 24, we've got 12 capacity right now, how much are we using?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: We are using.... right now our output is about 12 total. The highest we've seen last year was roughly 15 mgd and remember we're still taking 2.28 from the Regional Water Authority.

Greg Demko, City Manager: So, we've got quite a bit of margin for growth.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: A lot of growth, plus the 2.28, we also had an additional 350,000 because we carried some of the water that's transferred to Jamestown. It passes through us and we pump it to Jamestown and we have a 10 percent markup just on the pass through. We have basically 19 million worth of storage capacity in our system. We have two tanks at our Ward Plant (a 5 and 10 mgd) and we have four, 1 million gallon storage tanks. What we are showing right here is the **Ward tank**, which is currently under construction to be replaced. It was built in 1929. **We estimate it to be about \$3.4 million to replace this tank.** This tank should be completed in about 18 months and be online. The other thing that we are looking at is the **Lexington tank**. We just did a rehab on this tank. **Sometime around 2025, you're probably going to have to replace this tank also** because it was in the 1920, 30s era. You're probably looking at another \$4-5 million. In all probability; it's going to resemble this tank. This is the tank that was installed when we started taking water from

February 4, 2016

the Regional Water Plant Authority. And as everybody knows, what we do is the water from the Regional Water Plant goes to 62 and is pumped to us and it feeds out into our distribution systems. And this is, for lack of a better term, the storage device that maintains the proper pressure in the Randleman zone.

You have the <u>Sandy Ridge Reservoir</u>, which is probably going to have to be expanded in 2020 era. This is a ground storage tank. And this is a ground storage tank primarily because you're next to the airport and you don't want to be up in the flight path.

<u>Wastewater Treatment Plant</u>. This is your Eastside Wastewater Treatment Plant. The City of High Point has two plants, Eastside and Westside. This is your largest facility. If you look back in 2004, when it was all said and done, which included expansion of the plant from 16-26 mgd to BNR (Biological Nutrient Removal). It was about \$60 million including other control. Remember that the Eastside Wastewater Treatment Plant discharges into the Randleman reservoir which is a drinking water lake. So we have very tight numbers that we have to meet. When this plant was expanded, Archdale, Jamestown and Sedgefield bought into the plant. They purchased a percentage of the plant. Archdale has 2.5 mgd, Jamestown has 2, and Sedgefield has a small number 2.25. So they pay a percentage of our operating costs every year, just like we pay a percentage of the operating cost of the regional water plant. Again, I'm **projecting in 2025, you're probably looking at a \$100 million upgrade**. And the reason I say a \$100 million upgrade, you'll be going probably from 26-36 mgd. And remember....the theory to remember, typically when you increase the flow your discharge parameters become tighter. So you're going to have to....in fact, you'll put out less material. And you're still discharging into a drinking water reservoir. You're probably looking at membrane technology.

This is your <u>Westside Plant</u>. Currently under construction. It's been expanded from 6.2 to 8.2 to 10 mgd. It going to extended aeration to BNR currently, the same format as the Eastside facility. We are estimating it to be about \$50M million and the reason we are estimating it to be about \$50 million...as part of the permit that EPA and DENR requires us to follow, we're required to do an estimated \$1.5 million stream restoration to the Rich Fork Creek to eliminate sand mining issues that cause low DO and declare it impaired. So that's what we have to look at. I will say **based on the receiving characteristics that Rich Fork Creek, this may be your last discharge into this creek**. If you expand this plant anymore, you'll probably have to pump to a different receiving stream. When we evaluated the upgrade of this facility, that was one of the options we looked at. And in 2004, I think the pumping was \$30 million.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Terry, the one thing I want folks to know that you know and most of them do, the water we discharge is much cleaner than the water in the creek. The water in the creek has fecal chloroform contamination and the discharge point all the way to High Rock Lake, there's such a terribly low fall along through there, you don't have enough dissolved oxygen because you don't have any fall. And, so it's, I mean, it really is the....the impediments to the stream are not caused by us and you get a lot of people that get all excited about Rich Fork Creek and it is basically contaminated from agriculture and from septic tanks long before it gets to us.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: And that was the reason....the good thing that Public Services did in the City of High Point is when they negotiated the expansion of this facility and I know that everybody knows that an NPDES permit is actually an elimination of a point of discharge. They really don't want you to discharge. That was the original theory on that. So anytime you expand and discharge into a receiving stream, they have to evaluate the characteristics of the receiving stream to see if it can accept this additional load. That's why it took it so long. I started this project in '02 and I think we got permission to expand in '07 or '08. Anybody building a plant from scratch, starting from basically a new stream, it's going to be a long drawn out process.

February 4, 2016

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Terry, what are the possibilities of circling that back to our Ward Plant?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: That would be easier done at Eastside.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, but we've got plenty of discharge opportunities there. We don't have them here.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: You're talking about pumping the discharge at the headwaters of the stream going into Oak Hollow and then back through.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: No, at your Westside Plant you're saying you can't charge anymore into that stream.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: We don't think you'll be able to based on what we are hearing from the State. You might be able to. It all depends... and the good thing for us, Latimer, is that when we agreed to the expansion based on these discharge limitations, we always based it on DO. And the theory was (and I agree with you) our water coming out of here is 99.9 percent of of the creek and the DO is not going to be an issue for us. What has happened in the evolution of this expansion and upgrade, this creek is no longer impaired for ODO. It's impaired for what they call Inadequate Biological Activity. So, you know, I don't think DO is going to be an issue for us. Plus, one thing and you can see it right here, this is our filters and pump station. Typically your discharge DO is six and we agreed to seven. It's not going to be a problem for us. It's going to be fine.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: But, what you're talking about Latimer, that would be involved with an interbasin transfer.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I didn't even think about interbasin.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: The reason we were proactive, we could have went with extended aeration. That's basically what the plant is, for a lot less money than this. But we knew that you were going to have a TMDL at High Rock based on nitrogen phosphorous. You know that's going to happen. That's what you expect. The other thing that the Council probably realizes is that your Eastside Plant technically was the first prototype for, lack of a better term, TMDL for a lake. Randleman was the first to set up Randleman rules, then it went to Jordan and you had the Jordan rules. So now it has circled back and now you've got Falls Lake and High Rock which they're studying them now. Then again, you're primarily looking at phosphorous and nitrogens.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Which is generally farming.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: It is, it is. I will say that Latimer is right. There was a study done back on the stream years ago and for lack of a better term you, it had to be an academic study because they did a DNA analysis and was for animal fecal.

<u>Lift Stations</u>. City of High Point has 23 lift stations and we had these lift stations based throughout our program upgrades based on capacity or equipment failure or service. If we need to expand an area and we need to expand the lift station capability to pump more flow, that's how you see it budgeted in our process. And typically as regulations change, we are required to meet different criteria. What I'm showing right here, Riverdale is our largest lift station at roughly 20 mgd. I'm **projecting that in 2021-22 you'll have to expand Riverdale to 30 mgd for approximately \$40 million**. I'm showing Waterview expansion at \$10 million because Waterview is where all the water is going to come down

February 4, 2016

from your new service area up towards Kernersville. It all comes through Waterview. Waterview pumps to Riverdale and Riverdales goes to Eastside.

<u>Water Sewer and Mains</u>. We have approximately 650 miles of sewer line...of pipe, 620 miles of water pipe. We have 6,000 City of High Point maintained hydrants. There are actually more hydrants than 6,000, but those are considered private and we don't work on private hydrants. Customer accounts, we have about 42,000 customers. These lines break frequently because, you know, they are aged out in the cycle. We've had about 30 sewer line main breaks and 200 water line main breaks in the last six to eight months. I will say that based on our water loss of about 23 percent, which is based on unaccounted water and accounted water, that's not billed if that was billed and we've not caught the break and fixed the break, you would have a potential revenue source going to customers of about \$3 million. So you lost \$3 million.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Terry, the private hydrants, what kind of examples would those be?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: There are pockets inside the City that, for lack of a better term, are private subdivision or basically homeowners associations and because they are private, they are not built to City's standards and they knew going up front they weren't built to City's standards and they accepted it. Based on that criteria, we don't go in and do repair on the water or sewer lines or the hydrants. We do get a lot of calls to go in. It's probably because the houses are bought and sold and nobody realizes that it's a private system and they think it belongs to the City. We do get a lot of those calls.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Back when those were developed, developers wanted to do that to decrease their costs?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Yeah, it was to decrease the cost and maximize the amount of land that they had to build more houses because the roads are typically narrow.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Have we been having private systems approach us who want us to take them over?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: We have.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And the condition of those are what?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Well, this criteria...we didn't want to take them over, but we have had several to come to us.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: You're going to have one at the next Council meeting.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What are our other cities in NC doing because we, our former Council back in the 80s in order to stimulate some development, I mean they let them go. I mean, we've seen retention ponds with problems and Cherokee Hills with some stormwater and that kind of thing, but these folk are not...they virtually have no money to maintain their system. And they're going to be walking away from failing systems and their property is going to be worthless so.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And this is one of the major policy calls that you're going to have that will be very, very pricey.

February 4, 2016

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We need to know what the other communities have done because, I mean, we can take them over or not take them over or take them over with a lien against the properties that we collect over the years to pay for the capital improvements.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Or do Special Improvement Districts...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: My recommendation is...and I'm not proposing that, is that you do an assessment of the infrastructure before you even...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Oh, you'd have to...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: For lack of a better term, you don't want to buy a "pig in poke".

Council Member Latimer Alexander: You don't want to transfer that known deferred maintenance obligation to the citizens of High Point that did not buy into that.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: I agree. And, Greg is right, that's a Council issue that we'll have to deal with.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And that's going on in a lot of the Country right now too, is that a lot of developments want to do things on their own so they could basically increase their...and do it cheaper and have a different price point and for the properties and market them quickly. And then 25-30 years down the road, somebody's got to come up with it and a lot of the HOA's never really planned for that level of maintenance or expense, which we do plan for it. We just don't have enough money to do it the way we want to yet. We've got to really get a disciplined approach to that and Eric will show you that in a little bit. But that will be a real issue that we've got coming up. We'll have several coming up here in the next five years.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: And now not only on the water/sewer would be a factor in this, because of the narrow streets and the other issues because if the City goes in the direction of taking over these things, you're talking about garbage service and stuff. Trucks having trouble getting down through there because typically they have parking where you can't get to pick stuff up. So there's a lot of variables you would have to look at.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Go ahead...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: How much iodide do we have?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: It's a variable. I can tell you at Eastside during a high rain event, when I say a high rain event, you know 2 inches of rain. The plant is permitted for 26 and we're roughly about 13mgd. You can see flows at the plant as high as 40 mgd.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: So you've got a lot of iodide.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Yeah, but again, remember typically, for lack of a better term, most of your gravity/sewer are in the lower areas next to creeks where it's at. Really. But again, that's kind of where it's at. I guess I wanted to highlight the 41-42,000 customer accounts because that's a big factor. Remember, we are an Enterprise Fund and we have to pay for what we do. So that falls on our customers to help us help us pay for all this infrastructure. The other thing that everybody knows here, it's not going to get any easier and it's not going to get any cheaper. EPA and DENR are all going to make the rules a lot more stricter and you're just going to have to meet them.

February 4, 2016

This is an interesting factor; we were talking our water/sewer lines. Well, this right here shows how we're doing. If the replacement target was 50 years, we try to replace our lines every 50 years. That's about the average life of the line. Basically, if we target 2 percent replacement based on what we're budgeting right now, we're .18 percent replacement per year and .12 percent on the sewer. It's going to take us nearly 600 years to replace our lines that we currently have, not the news that you're adding on. Eight hundred years for the sewer. We calculated and this is a rough estimate based on engineering dollars \$200/foot, a million dollars roughly one mile. I can tell you that mathematically that may work out, but that's not a good number. I'm currently getting ready to bid out an aerial replacement. It's only 700 feet of line, it's a 21 inch epoxy sewer pipe. It's an engineering estimate of \$900,000-\$1 million.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And pretty much the type of pipe that we're using has an expected lifespan of what...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: About 50-70 years.

Greg Demko, City Manager: 50-70 years... we've got some work to do.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: And some of the newer pipe...historically in the past, Council was very proactive on your Deep River outfall was one the bigger projects that you had, you went with what was called a polymer pipe resin, it could theoretically last 100 years and for everybody to say we hope it does because it's 60 feet in the ground.

Council Member Cynthia Davis: Currently, what is spent annually on replacement?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Replacement... it varies. We budget roughly a million a year and currently we have about 3-4 million in reserve and the reason we keep that much in reserve is because historically in the past when we had major pipe failures, it's hard to find the money. So, I keep a reserve fund that I can go to. I try to spend at least $2-2 \frac{1}{2} - 3$ million a year and it's based on, again, it's based on this aerial and the aerial is going to be a million dollars, 700 feet that's all that's going to be replaced. Then we hire....because of our manpower limitation, we cannot be everywhere at all times repairing main breaks and sewers, so we have a contractor on call at all times. And sometimes that contract can be \$5-600,000.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We had a meeting in this room. Bill, you and I were the only ones, Terry maybe you were in the room at the time. Um, we had an aerial out off of Gordon Road. It was Lazy Lane.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: I was here.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We had 700 or 900 feet of the top of this pipe open up and it was trevi foundation and we were sitting in this room and it was like, how do we fix it and basically the answer was we took fiberglass and wrapped the outside of the pipe and gel-coated it into place.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Actually, on one of them, Latimer, we had to actually replace the line. We couldn't even gel-coat it. It was a temporary repair, \$300,000.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We've had some real eye openers.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: And, I will say that this one aerial that we're replacing, this is on the Richland Creek side going into Eastside. There are other aerials, so that's why you see it on our long-term project. There's a lot of money out there for a lot of rehab.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: What we're showing right here, is what Public Services does for their 5-year budget and typically we try to stay on target. If we budget if for this year, we try to stay within our operating boundaries. This is our pay as you go. We have so many projects that we have or that we are doing at one time that we have funded. We kind of condensed into a simplistic deal as minor replacement. The one that really stands out that you'll see this year that was never budgeted is the Kearns demo at \$1.2 million. When I got here in 2002, the previous Public Services Director was asking to tear it down and it was roughly at \$600,000. But right now, we've already did an asbestos...it's got the asbestos so you've got to handle the asbestos and you've got to remove all the equipment, so we're estimating \$1.2 million.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And this is the property.....Kearns, the University and Martin Luther King.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: The other thing that we are showing on the Master Plan on the water/sewer projects, historically the last time you had a the water/sewer master plan was in 1980 and in 1980, the assumption was that everybody wanted water and everybody was going to use massive amounts of water. So you had these humongous water lines and humongous sewer lines. As everybody knows now, that is not the case. It's smaller lines because you've got all the overflow devices and that's typically that's the way it is. And now you have to recalculate that load.

I'm adding additional money for an **HVAC upgrade for the plants.** These are new sewer lines. We always budget money for future tank rehab. The one that we talked about for Lexington and Sandy Ridge, we try to accumulate the money in there so that we can do repairs. We can draw from that instead of trying to borrow Revenue bond money if we can get by with that.

Greg Demko, City Manager: So that's like a savings account, that's homeowners association and we're not able...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Yeah, that's an HOA. And typically we try to keep this around \$4 million. When we work with Jeff and Eric, we know, they get us some target boundaries and that's what we try to stay within and sometimes it's up and sometimes it's down. That's how we come up with this. These are your revenue bonds and these typically, and Eric you can correct me on this, typically higher anything above \$600,000 or higher.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: Yes...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: You've got a lot of lift stations that **you still have to pay for. You still have to borrow money for the Westside Plant to finish in and the incinerator.** This is the utility locations that coincide with the NCDOT project. We work with Mark and NCDOT so we fund far enough out so we know what we have to have to move utilities. New sewer lines, utility.... these are generic plant upgrades. Alternative projects, we are actually doing proactive. There's a lot of technology out there that allows you to reduce loading to the plant to make it more efficient. We are looking at biodiesel fall, regeneration grease straps to try to use that for fuel for the incinerator and stuff like that. It's out on the horizon. And again, just because it's out on the horizon, it doesn't mean..... We want Council to know that the possibility is coming.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What kind of shape are our dams in?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Your Oak Hollow dam is fine. Your Arnold Koonce Dam is budgeted for an \$8 million rehab based on some flood issues, so it's included in this upgrade.

February 4, 2016

Randy Hemann, Assistant City Manager: We do have emergency action plans for those. That was something required in the legislation after the coal ash...when they did that and we do have those in place.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: We do. And another issue is emergency action plans have been deemed non-public information because it highlights areas that have critical infrastructure, but we do have those and they are available, we share them with Police and fire. But it's not open to the public.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And that's part of the Homeland Security.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: It is, and there's a separate Homeland Security issue too. Anyway based on just 5 years we are projecting about \$130 million worth of equipment and sewer line etc. upgrades.

This right here, you know, you asked about the water/sewer rates and talked about fees and stuff like this. One thing that I wanted to highlight. If you look right here, 1997..... all this right here **has not been increased since 1997.** None of the charges. I just highlighted two. Our water/sewer tap, we charge \$1,040 for it. Materials, manpower is costing us \$2,200 to put this tap in. We think it should be increased, but that's a Council decision. Sewer tap, we charge \$1,010. It's costing us \$1,800 in equipment to mount and put this tap in. And, again, we're projecting what we think it should be. But, again, that's a Council decision.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What are other municipalities charging around us?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: When I actually go through it I will show you.

Greg Demko, City Manager: We've got that coming in, so thank you.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: And some.... they take different paths and it's a philosophical thing. Some people put it more on the rates and less on the fees which spreads it out over a greater number of people. Some put it on the fees and less on the rates and that way your newer customers are paying more of their share versus all your rate customers.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: There's your question...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Where are we?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: We are right down here. Water/sewer for us, if we did the tap and the water...

Greg Demko, City Manager: So we're at \$2,120 and Greensboro is at \$2,155 and Winston-Salem's at \$9,400

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Well, now remember, I don't know what correct term they call it; they call it an assessment fee of \$2, 300 for water and almost \$5,000 for sewer.

Council Member Jay Wagner: What do they do with that?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: I am assuming...

Mayor Bencini: Bank it...

February 4, 2016

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: And you correct me if I'm wrong, Randy, that it is some type of capacity fee and the idea behind that is what Randy stated earlier, for new customers tying it on it's to make them pay a higher rate than to have to spread it out over the rates for individual customers. Have them pay for the infrastructure that is required to upgrade anything upstream. So you either get sewer from them or get water to them.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Do you think...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Winston also has policy's that we don't have and they've got one developer that is asking for it now where we would extend outfall lines at our cost and charge them by the lot as they develop it.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Yeah, yeah.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: So it gives Winston more money to do things like that with versus, then in our case we'd just tell developers it's their responsibility and they put the money...

Council Member Jay Wagner: Your kind of financing that improvement for them...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: That's right. You're the bank.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Well, let me ask you, do you think maybe part of that is because they have maybe gotten behind and they are playing catch up.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Winston-Salem always had this saying that they had the lowest rate and they were very adamant about that.

Council Member Jay Wagner: So not so much anymore.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Well, their rates, their customer rates...

Council Member Jay Wagner: Yeah...

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Their water usage rates are lower.

Council Member Jay Wagner: Yeah, yeah, because they're hitting the developers with everything new coming on.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What would be the argument for not recovering cost.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: From public service standpoint? To me as an Enterprise Fund, I would say we should at least recover our cost. I don't think that we should make a profit, but we should at least break even.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I can't see a reason not to recover cost.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: You'll hear it from developers.

Council Member Jay Wagner: They already mentioned...

February 4, 2016

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I understand that we'll hear it from developers, but, you know, basically all we're doing is supplementing a developer's project.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Current users are helping to pay for new development.

Council Member Jay Wagner: We're all subsidizing.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I think we need to.

Mayor Bencini: And a thousand dollars on a new construction unit, you know, if it can't make it with that, it probably shouldn't be built anyhow.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And I'm a tough one to judge about how it works here because in the west if we did water/sewer, the last two communities I worked with it was \$45,000.

Mayor Bencini: \$45,000?

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I mean, I think we should start thinking about whatever cost recovery is.

Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Golden: Do you have any idea lost how much we lost by not increasing since '97?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: I do not. We'd have to calculate those numbers.

Mayor Bencini: We' don't want to think about all that being lost.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: This revenue represents less than one-half of one percent of our total revenue, so it's not.... if you triple our rate, it's not a gigantic windfall for the revenue system.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: No, but it's still.

Mayor Bencini: But we're covering our cost.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: We should be breaking even at the minimum. This right is here is the Benchmarking data from UNC. These 12 NEPs participated in the study and basically what it's showing is that we're right here at \$3.56 per thousand gallons and it shows the low of Burlington at \$1.75 and Wilson at \$5.44. Basically we're right at the median, so we're not high. We're not low.

Greg Demko, City Manager: This is what it cost us to produce water, correct? So this is a measure of our cost effectiveness to produce water, not what gets charge for water that's coming later.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: You hear a lot of issues about our rates. Our rates are competitive.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Yeah, this includes our debt service too. We've spent since 2000 over \$300-\$400 million, so we've got that debt on ours. If you'll look at some of the ones towards the bottom that I know about specifically Greensboro and Winston, and they haven't spent that kind of money.

Mayor Bencini: So Burlington is getting ready to have to build....

Greg Demko, City Manager: Oh yeah.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: The good thing about how the Council historically in the past has seen the proactive approach to upgrade the infrastructure before it'sfor this particular issue. It's going to have to be done and very proactive.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Alright, so the median was \$3.62, we're six cents under the median for a thousand gallons of water produced.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Correct...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: What about billed?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: It's coming up. This is billed.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Cost to the customer is coming up.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: No, we deleted that one. This is our UNC participant that we were part of for water and wastewater rates. There are roughly 500 entities in this study. This is for water only. In order to make it uniform, they picked just 5,000 gallons.

Greg Demko, City Manager: So they took our rate, took everybody's rate 5,000 gallons and this is where it comes out.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: And basically what we're showing right here, this is us we're at \$25 and the median is \$31. So we're way low in the pricing, so we're fine.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Ok, so that's on water...okay.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Sewer.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We are...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Sewer, again, we are at \$5,000. We're at \$42 per 5,000 gallons. The median is \$38.60 we're a little bit higher. That's probably right because most of your infrastructure rehab and rehab repair has been on the sewer side.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And the max at the 110. Do you know who that is? I didn't ask you that before. I wouldn't want to live there.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: I do not...

Council Member Jay Wagner: That's reflective of all the outfalls and all that that we just got finished doing.

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: Yeah, plant upgrades, outfalls, pump stations the outfalls, the pump stations...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Remember, Eastside and Westside by themselves you're looking at \$110 million.

February 4, 2016

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I walked through the High Point Subway. I don't know if anybody else walked through the High Point Subway. If you went down to Deep River where it crosses Business 85....We had a tunnel boring machine that cut a tunnel that I could stand up in and cut it for three or four miles through solid granite. I mean, I'd never been and it's 90 some feet in the ground.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: That's where I told you that's part of that...

Council Member Latimer Alexander: I mean, I had never, I had never been in something like that and had never seen. I mean we had....it was really interesting to watch this tunnel being bored out. I mean, you were way down in the dirt.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: That's your biggest sewer line, I think it's 66-inch and it's about 60-70 feet down and when originally the way it was designed, we were allowed to be inside the Randleman buffer. The US Army Corps of Engineers relinquished that permission and pushed us out another hundred feet, so that's why. We originally weren't going to be down 60 feet, but that's why were down 60 feet.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Well, you know the reason why I say it was a subway is because you got in the little waste car behind the little engine and you just chugged on up to the front. Oh, I had a big time down there.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: This is your water/sewer bill combined. Again about 5,000 gallons. We are at \$68. The median is \$67.98. We're right on target. We're right in the middle.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Then the affordable range down in the lower right hand they're calling it affordable, getting into the yellow it's a little bit less.

Mayor Bencini: That's good.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: <u>Areas of concerns</u>, remember I told you about the areas of concerns that Public Services had. And this is just our estimate at 1 percent growth per year. We need a larger customer base to reflect all these prices that we've had going on now, our current debt, plus our new costs that are coming down, coming fast. Currently, based on what you're looking at, most of your growth is probably going to be up towards the Kernersville area cause that's the area that's growing right now. Other issues that we are concerned about is compliance. We cannot dictate what DWQ or DEQ as they are now and EPA changed. Every time they come up with new regs and find new issues and we have to adapt to meet them and that dictates a lot of the expansions and a lot of upgrades. Currently for us, Council needs to know that your Senior staff, and I'm senior staff, I'm like a good wine...

Greg Demko, City Manager: You're aging up...

Mayor Bencini: You can ride the bus with Latimer... [laughter]

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Current staff is aging out. You've lots....you've already lost some critical management positions. Based on the staff that we have now, your first line management and probably your second line management can pretty much go now or within two to three years. What we're finding is that we can't get trained people or technical background people to replace them. This is not local to High Point. It's actually a nationwide issue. For lack of a better term, we all started about the same time, and we're all aging out about the same time. And if anybody has ever been to a wastewater plant it is not one of the most glamourous places to be.

February 4, 2016

Mayor Bencini: So you don't think that the millennials are kind of gravitating towards

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager: We have that in Electric and in our public works side of Public Services. We have it in the water/sewer side. It is becoming critical.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: So what you see.... what I've asked for in the budget which is different than you've ever seen in the past. I've actually asked for **additional people**. I didn't ask for additional full-time people. I asked for trainees for the lack of a better term. And the idea is to go to tech schools and have them work 20 hours a week, get them brought up and from lack of a better term, get them interested in the business and get them trained to come on. Not only are you going to lose your management staff, you're going to lose your technical staff—the people that work on this stuff. The technology behind water and wastewater has gotten so advanced, it's almost computer grade. It's computers now. So you need people to be able to do that. So that's one big deal.

Other issues that we looked at is **expanded service area**. Again, High Point is somewhat contained on three sides, you've got Jamestown, Archdale, Thomasville, and you can't really go that way. Most of your development is going to be up towards Kernersville. You might be able to go some into Davidson County, maybe. But, then you can probably cross over Business-85 and serve some of the area across from Grandover, but that would be very expensive. Again, there's no sense in talking about this because we've already talked about service to private developments. We are getting a lot of requests to go in and do a lot of repairs and we have to tell them no and for the lack of a better term, they don't understand why.

Council Member Cynthia Davis: So are we in good shape in Colfax for expansion in that area.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Colfax, are you talking about the FedEx area?

Council Member Cynthia Davis: Well, the Boylston Road area stuff like that. The things that have come to us. We're good there?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Yeah, well that's why I showed you Waterview. Waterview serves that area, so we need to make sure Waterview is upgraded.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And part of what you're showing is we've got capacity, we've debt, the more number of customers, the more we sell; it eases the debt load on everybody else.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: That's where I said we needed to acquire new customers.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We need some load in that pipe too.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Absolutely...

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Particularly on the waterside because one thing I told you about the 3 million gallons. A lot of times because we have no customers on very large lines, because the EPA mandates it and DEQ mandates, we are required to bleed off water to maintain proper disinfection ratios. So we're wasting water underground. Anyway, the area up in here is where you'll be targeting for growth and that's why I said.... it's very.... we need to acquire for more customers and so forth, whether you bring them downtown and rehab more areas or expand out.

<u>Future large scale projects</u>. I talked to you about Ward at \$48 million, Eastside \$100 million, new current Incinerator right now is still under upgrade to be expanded. Remember the new EPA max standards

February 4, 2016

which cost you another \$8 million. In 2025 theoretically you will not have enough incinerator to burn your salvage so there'll have to be an alternate disposal plan. Lift stations, we do have a program on your smaller lift stations to replace and upgrade them, but these two right here are critical. Again, **Riverdale** goes straight to the **Eastside and Waterview** serves the area...Boylston, Colfax that needs to be upgraded.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Terry do we have pass mercury standards on our incinerator?

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: Yes, we do. That's why it cost you \$8 million.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Okay.

Terry Houk, Public Services Director: You have.... now when the incinerator comes on, you'll have a carbon pack to treat for mercury. The other thing you have to watch out, and it was highlighted. We straddle two basins. We're on the Yadkin Pee Dee, which is Westside and the Eastside discharges into the upper Cape Fear so you have to be careful about transferring flow back and forth. We are, however, grandfathered at the water plant for 10 million gallons to cross the basins. We've got to be really careful in our expansion up towards Kernersville. Winston-Salem water, if they come down our sewer lines that's interbasin transfer. So that's why we're running water lines up there. We talked about the Piedmont Triad Water Plant and upgrade. Remember, the ultimate build-out for this plant is \$12 million gallons per day. Our estimate based at 19 percent, is going to be about \$40 million for us and this could be high. Based on the technology, it's hard to tell what they'll do, but I'd rather estimate high than low. When they go up to 48 million, we'll get approximately 10 million gallons. The current transmission line that we put in and we operate right now is not big enough to carry that additional 10 million gallons. Again, we talked about water distribution and collection system upgrades based on your life cycle.

Water and Sewer Budget/Operational Presentation

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: This is my part. **Terry Houk, Public Services Director:** Over to Eric.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: The next 30 minutes...[laughter]

Greg Demko, City Manager: You've got six!

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: this will be really quick.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: You all know that when we do these revenue bond issues, we have our financial advisor from Davenport to help us out and we're also required to do a feasibility study every year. Since 2004, we've gone through this I think six or seven times and that study always tell us they want us to have a range and say the rate to support this needs to be between four and six percent. And we do that evaluation and come back to Council with a recommendation. And going back to the last ten years, we've been in that four to six percent range every year. In 2012, the feasibility study showed us at a four percent every year, but one of the things that we looked at is where we are currently and we make a recommendation. We didn't make a recommendation to raise rates for a couple of years. 1) Because the feasibility study is fairly conservative and we were out performing that study. We were at a low rate environment, selling bonds at lower rates and anticipated, and we took advantage of some refundings which really helped out. And so the last couple of years we've had a 3 and 3.85 percent increase on water/sewer.

February 4, 2016

Now, the feasibility study really is... this is really busy, but you have a copy there. The feasibility study plan really is just a business plan and we went through this business plan. What I have here, similar to what we do with stormwater is this is a scenario here that says we're not going to raise rates at all. We're not going to sell any debt. How bad does this situation get? How quickly do we get upside down? So we took their operating revenue and grew it by that one percent that Terry talked about. We took his pay as you go financing plan here to get us down to a total revenue and total sources. This includes the fund balance every year anywhere from 2017 going out to 2025. And then for Personnel and Operating we used a modified CPI to grow those costs at a continual level. We grew the operating capital as well and we put in our current debt service on the current debt that we have. No new additional debt. As you can see right away, our fund balance is 19 almost 20 million where our 50% fund balance policy is 22.6. **That tells me we need a rate increase to sustain the current debt service and to if we intend to issue future debt.** We do have a debt revenue bond planned for this spring. And typically, our plan is every other year. Terry talked about the \$105 million in revenue bond debt that he anticipates in addition to the pay as you go financing of \$25 million for the \$130 million in the future span of six or eight years.

So what I've done here, where it is shaded yellow, this shows us implementing a four percent rate increase for the next 3 years. I've changed the pay as you go financing a little bit because one year we're at 3.8, one year we're 6.2, but over the five years we're at \$25 million or a little over \$25 million. So what we're saying here is let's stabilize that at \$5million a year, except for this first year because we do have the Kearns demolition that was a little bit of an outlier, but let's stabilize that at \$5 million a year and then raise the rate and then this shows the impact of issuing \$35 million in debt. One issuance at 2016, one at 2018, one at 2020 that gets the \$105 million and future projects. Um...and at the end of the day we see, with these rate increases if we're negative or a little bit under, but then we start to become positive again. So that tells me that with this model, we can afford it in and in the next couple of years we may be straddling that line on our 50 percent fund balance, but recall this is a very conservative estimate and we typically have outperformed the conservative nature of this. So I'm not too concerned about being 5 percent one way or the other. I feel like we'll meet that. But, this does show that we can afford the \$105 million in three issues and not necessarily an even 35, we may do a 40 and a 30. It just depends on how our project flows are or what our cash needs are. So that's the business plan part of it. This does address most of things that Terry talked about, most of the projects, but we do get out hereand he talked about a couple of hundred million dollars in projects. This addresses about hundred and five and this is about half of it. So I know some Council members have said when are we ever going to be done with this and the answer is never. Because we always have to invest in our system.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Part of our problem if you go back a long way, we had a lot of years where we were zero, zero, zero and then we had some years where we had 13 and 15 percent in a year kind of increases.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: Yeah, I had another model. In 2001, I think we had a 17.2 percent increase.

Greg Demko, City Manager: One of things that I'm use to on the economic development side is our businesses or our existing businesses want to see predictable cost structures. So if we can smooth out items and they can plan for it in their business plans, that's what they're looking for. And our rating agencies, and we are AAA rated, our rating agencies looking for that consistency and that discipline as well.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: One other thing I did on this model is it gives you the ability to raise the rate and see how you compare and it's not perfect because it doesn't show anybody

February 4, 2016

else raising rates, but when I did that by the 12 percent over the 3 years we're over here at about \$75. So really even if we raise our rates and nobody else does...

Mayor Bencini: We're still at pretty good shape...

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: We're still in pretty good shape. Absolutely.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And that's it. Any questions of Eric or Terry?

Mayor Bencini: So, can I take this as a staff recommendation in terms of the increase?

Greg Demko, City Manager: Yes, **we're looking to recommend a four percent increase**. We're also looking to **recommend a cost recovery on the fees,** that we **issue \$35 million in bonds or \$105 million in three different stages** over there and that's about it on these policies.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: Do we have any refunding options on debt we've already issued.

Greg Demko, City Manager: No...go ahead.

Eric Olmedo, Budget and Performance Manager: Well, we typically look at that every time we tend to issue debt. It rarely makes sense to do that as a standalone, but when we go to issue this debt, our advisors will look at that for us and make recommendations. We have really taken advantage of that over the last ten years and right now our cost.

Greg Demko, City Manager: And one of the pieces is this current plan still doesn't fully address the age of the pipes, but it gets us closer.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We've had....when we were out there making double digit increases, our citizens told us, look we can't handle double digit increases. We would rather have something small and reasonable every year than blow it away. So a four percent increase going back historically is what our citizens are expecting.

Greg Demko, City Manager: Well, and a couple of other things to keep in mind. Right now borrowing rates are at more than historic lows. Two years from now they are probably not going to be. Second piece is, our debt load is spread out across our whole customer base, so the faster we grow that customer base, the less our rate increases have to be and the more affordable. Because we've got capacity. We've got capacity up the ying-yang.

Council Member Latimer Alexander: We ought to be using that as an economic incentive. I mean if we can find a million mgd, you know we need go out and find...Google....

Mayor Bencini: Breweries. Server farms. They don't hire a lot of people, but they use a lot of water and electricity.

Greg Demko, City Manager: But, that's it and thank you. We've got a lot of things. Thanks for the guidance as we move this forward and we'll keep working through it. Have a good night.

The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m. upon motion duly made and seconded.

High Point City Council Special Meeting (Pre-Budget #3)

Minutes

February 4, 2016

Respectfully Submitted,

William S. Bencini, Jr., Mayor

Attest:

Maria Smith, Deputy City Clerk